THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. THOMAS
AGENDA
THE TENTH MEETING OF THE MUNICIPAL HERITAGE COMMITTEE

COMMITTEE
ROOM #204 5:30 P.M. November 9, 2016

MINUTES
Confirmation of the minutes of the meeting held on September 14, 2016.
NEW BUSINESS

Stantec - Heritage Conservation District

Representatives from Stantec will be in attendance to provide an update on the
progress of the St. Thomas Heritage Conservation District.

West Pavilion Accessibility Project

Ed van der Maarel, Principal Architect, Partner and Heritage Consultant, a+LiNK
Architecture Inc. will be in attendance to present plans for the West Pavilion
Accessibility Project. Pages 2-4

Pinafore Park Heritage Designation By-law Pages 5-9

Creation of a Courthouse Neighbourhood

Justin Lawrence, Director of Environmental Services and City Engineer will be in
attendance to discuss the creation of a courthouse neighbourhood. Pages 10-11

2017 Municipal Heritage Committee Budget Pages 12-13

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

Pamphilets/Website/Etc.

Heritage Conservation District

NEXT MEETING
To Be Determined

ADJOURNMENT
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CITY OF ST. THOMAS
BY-LAWNO. 96-2005
A by-law to designate Pinafore Park, 95 Elm Street, in the
City of St. Thomas, as & property of cultural heritage value or interest.

WHEREAS pursuant to the Ontario Heritage Act, R.5.0. 1990, as amended, the Council of a
municipality may by by-law designate a property including buildings and structures thereon to be
of historic or architectural value or interest;

AND WHEREAS notice of intention to designate the property known as Pinafore Park, 95
Elm Street, St. Thomas, Ontario, has been duly published and served, and no notice of objection
has been received to such designation;

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF
ST. THOMAS, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1. There is hereby designated as being of historic and architectural value or interest the property
known as 95 Elm Street in the City of St. Thomas, all of which is described in Schedule "A"
attached hereto, for the reasons set out in Schedule "B" attached hereto.

2. The City Clerk is hereby authorized to cause a copy of this by-law to be registered upon the
title to the property described in the aforementioned Schedule "A" in the proper Land Registry
Office,

3. The City Clerk is hereby authorized to cause a copy of this by-law to be served upon the
owner of the aforesaid pmpt?rty and upon the Ontario Heritage Trust and to cause notice of this
by-law to be published in the St. Thomas Times-Journal.

4. This by-law comes into force on the day it is finally passed.

READ a First and Second time this 18th day of July, 2005.

READ a Third time and finally passed this 18th day of July, 2005.

Original signed by "Wendell Graves" Original signed by "Jeff Kohler"

City Clerk Mayor



Schedule "A"

Part Lots 4 & 5, Concession 7, Township of Yarmouth, County of Elgin

and Lot 1, Plan 241, City of St. Thomas, County of Elgin
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SCHEDULE "B"

REASONS FOR DESIGNATION
HISTORY

For more than 100 years, the area known as Pinafore Park, has been recognized as an outstanding example
of a natural setting, perfect for social, cultural, civic and recreational events. The City of St. Thomas
purchased the park area in 1903 and since then has been responsible for its development and maintenance.

In its early years, the Park area hosted various community events including many school and Sunday schaol
picnics, golf and baseball games, bicycling, and shooting ranges. There was cven a zoo at the park for some
years until public opinion forced it to close. Sundays at the park were always busy days and continuc to be
50, at this time.

Today, Pinafore Park is recognized as the crown jewel in the large park system within the City of St.
Thomas. Its status as the crown jewel has been camed by countless years of meticulous maintenance and
tender loving care, That care is evident as one wanders the park and realizes that many of the features
enjoyed today are from the early days of the park.

Before the park was created, the area was known as the “Mill Pond” and had a varied history. The first land
registry entry shows a grant by the Crown to the Baby family. It was a large grant of land along the north
shore of Lake Erie, given to the Baby family that caused Col. Thomas Talbot to re-apply to the Crown in
1803, for another land grant in the townships of Dunwich and Aldborough, which eventually led to the
formation of the Talbot Settlement.

In 1821, the land begins a varied journey that takes it from a wilderness ravine to an operating millpond that
supported a growing community for more than 30 years, That journey sees the land or parts of it, owned by
some very notable persons in the history of this city including Thomas and Benjamin Drake, Edmund
Yarwood, Francis Ermatinger, Edward Horton, Freeman Ellison, Charles Roe, James H. Still, Colin
Munroe, and James Bell,

Pinafore Park is also closely linked to the railway history of our city. In 1880, the millpond and its water
rights were sold to the Canada Southern Railway to supply water for the steam engines housed at the shops
on Wellington Street. In July 1898, the St. Thomas Street Railway marked it debut in the city with daylong
celebrations at Pinafore Park. By 1902, with the Strect Rallway in financial trouble, James Bell purchased
the area and he!d it for one year, He sold the land to the city of St. Thomas the following year for exactly the
same amount ($8,000) that he purchased the land for the year before,

There are many cultural and natural features listed later, which support the designation of this city owned
property under the Ontario Heritage Act as “q significant and important part of the cultural and social
landscape™ of the City of St. Thomas.

1. Pinafore Park has been a major site for socinl, cultural and outdoor recreational events for more than
100 years, This park spans more than 3 centuries of this city’s history, some of it is very colourful and at
least one incident is very tragic.

2. Before the creation of the park, the area known as the millpond had been a working mill for years, The
natural ravine area allowed for creation of the millpond by damming the hollow at the concession road
on Elm Street. The foundation of the old mill can still be found on the western edge of the millpond
known as Pinafore Lake. The lake is covers almost 15 acres.

3. The water rights to Pinafore Lake were sold to the Canada Southern Railway to support the need for
Jarge amounts of water for the steam engines housed at the CASO shops on Wellington Street. Two
large water funnels were installed at the northerly end of the pond to drain water into the Mill Creck
pumping station and system that sent water through the pipelines to the shops. The break wall for the
pumphouse can still be found along the edge of the lake. When the level of Eim Street was raised in
1950's new funnels were built, and it those that are visible today from Elm Street. In the 1950’s the city
purchased the rights to the water from the Michigan Central,

4. The North Sbelter, located at the very north end of the park by the lake, had been the terminal for the
St. Thomes Street Railway. It represents the heyday of Victorian “Sundays in the park”, when the line
looped out to the park and allowed everyone from across the city to access to the park by way of the
street railway. The structure was moved from its original site, near the present day restrooms, to this
position in 1926. The original course of the Street Railway can be traced along the east side of the
present road to the intersection of the three current roads.
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5. The park was the site of the first golf course in the city. The course lay to west of the front entrance
and the middle road. The course was nine holes in length. This was the called “the sport of the elite” in
the 1890"s and was a major feature of the early days of the park. The course was frequented by many of
our city’s elite including Judge Charles Oakes Ermatinger and city treasurer S.0, Perry. The Pinafore
Park course was one of the early courscs in Southwestern Ontario, the London Hunt Club and others in
Simcoe and Brantford being its counterparts. The course remained in operation until 1909 when it
moved to Talbot Street.

6. The Boat House was located on the south shore of the lake, just to the west of the East Pavilion.
Created in 1899, the boathouse stowed rowboats for rentals and excursions. The Canada Southem
Railway employees had used the lake for their boating activities before the park opened. It may have
been these employees who named the lake “Pinafore” after the Gilbert and Sullivan operetta of the same
name. The boathouse closed in the early 1950's but the remains of the foundation can be pointed out

today.

It wes from this boathouse that the “Swan boat disaster” occurred on July 6, 1925. A combined Sunday
school picnic of the Anglican churches in the city had brought countless families to the park to celebrate
and enjoy the summer weather. As part of the day’s activities, children and their parents took partina
water boat activity that included a ride on the paddie wheel propelled Swan Boat, At the time of the
accident, 21 children and 3 adults were on the boat. A possibie flooding of one of the smaller boats in
the structure may have caused the children to panic and to stand up, causing the entire boat to capsize.
Seven children and one woman perished in this accident, the second worse incident in the city’s history.

7. The East Pavilion, located at the east end of the lake, was erected in 1898 by James Still, the owner of
the Street Railway, as part of his effort to enlarge the scope of events at Pinafore Park. The building,
which was constructed by J.M.Green, reflects the Victorian idea of an open-air structure. Built
originally as a dance pavilion, at a cost of $1,299.00 the East Pavilion is now largely used as a picnic
shelter. It is the oldest structure still standing in the park, The original hardwood dance floor was
replaced in 1968 and renovated again in 1987. The upper orchestra balcony had been removed during
the 1920s, The low wooden railings form the “walls” of the building and are similar to the original
railings that gave this structure its incredible open view to the lake and the park. The low roof of the
pavilion is formed with four dormers, and along with the paint and trim used on the structure; give the
building a very distinctive Victorian flavour.

8. The West Pavilion was built in 1917. Its creators were Neil Darrach, renowned city architect, and J.M.
Green, city builder and contractor. This is one of the largest structures in the park and can be secn from
most areas, Often referred to as the Main Pavilion, the upper floor of this two-storey structure was once
home to summer dances andpartiesandwasuverypopularspotduﬁngthewwuanduptothelatc
1950"s. The structure features a uniquely designed series of half moon arches and posts that support the
weight of the building. The north half of the building was home for many years to ice cream and
confections vendors. The building is now used as a picnic shelter, a place to hold large reunions and in
late November and December hosts the annual Fantasy of Lights.

9. The Centennial Cairn just to the cast and north of the West Pavilion was erccted by the city in 1903 to
celebrate the Centennial of the Talbot Settlement. The cairn holds 29 engraved stones that represent all
the townships that formed the Talbot Settlement that stretched from the Long Point area to Windsor
along Lake Erie, In 2003, the cairn was re-dedicated by members of the Talbot Bi-Centennial
Committes, to the memories of the founder and pioneers of the settlement. A walkway and gardens were
installed to commemorate the event.

10. Emslie Field is the home of St. Thomas’ baseball history. Named afier city native Robert Emslic, a
pitcher for St. Thomas, London and Guelph baseball teams, who was best known for his 38 years of
outstanding umpiring abilities in both the American and National Baseball Leagues. This is one of the
longest continuously used baseball fields in Ontario.

11. The Woodlot Pavilion, located at the far south end of the park, was once the site of small overnight
cotiages for the “new motoring public” in the 1920-1930’s. Established in the early 1920°s by the Elgin
Motor Club, the site could accommodate 30 people over-night. The area remained active until 1949,
when motels took over the travel needs of the motorists. The Woodlot Pavilion is built on the
foundation of the cookhouse for these cottages.

12. The Canadian Jubilee Cairn stands just north of the Emslie Field, near the far west gardens. It was
installed in the Park, to represent the 60" Anniversary of Canada’s Confederation in 1927. No
celebrations oécurred for the Golden Anniversary in 1917, as World War I caused the celebration to
be forfeited. There is a time capsule buried here.



13. The Wildlife Sanctuary and Aviary, The sanctuary was started in the 1950’s and has been home to
many deer. The little dam at the north end of the pond (which is spring fed), allows for many species of
water birds to live here. The area from the little dam to the lake was known as “turtle alley”, There have
been trumpeter swans at the park since 1912 when they were first introduced. Along with the deer, the
swans arc a special feature in the park for young and old alike, The aviary was established in 1977 and
allows for close specimen watching of many different birds.

14. The Fundamental Bench Mark is the only one of its kind in Elgin County, It is located 60 feet south of
the south limit of Elm Street and 25 feet east of the westerly limit of Pinafore Park. The bronze tablet (3
inches in diameter in the center on top of the monument shows the No. 1644 and the clevation above sea
level of 774.779 feet is stamped on the rectangular bronze plate attached to east side thereof. In 1925,
these benchmarks were placed in every major city and most larger towns in the Dominion of Canada. By
1939, 144 fundamental benchmarks had been established including this example,

This example sits 1 foot above ground, The visible portion sits atop a picce measuring 1 foot and 6
inches square, From the top, the monument tapers 6 feet below ground level to 2 feet square at its
lowest depth. This concrete pylon rests on a 2-foot horizontal 6-foot base that in turn extends to a further
1 foot in depth, On top of the 6 foot base is a bronze tablet called a “sub-surface bench mark”, This
benchmark is protected by two vertically placed conjoined glazed sewer tiles, recessed into the base and
sealed with an iron cap. The whole of the mass is strengthened further by steel reinforcing rods.
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Report No
ES86-16

FAL S Corporation of the
L City of St. Thomas

ST. THOMAS

File No.

Mayor Jackson and

Directed to: Members of City Council

Meeting Date: October 11, 2016
Date Authored: September 29, 2016

Department: Environmental Services

Justin Lawrence, Director of Environmental

p : : ity Engi
repared By Services and City Engineer

Attachments

Subject: ES 86-16 Courthouse Neighbourhood

Recommendation:

THAT: Report ES86-16, Courthouse Neighbourhood, be received for information; and further

THAT: Council endorse staff to begin community engagement to establish a Courthouse

Neighbourhood.

Origin:

During the preparation of 2 potential 2017 capital projects, an opportunity was identified to tie together
several initiatives and further develop the Courthouse area as a unique neighbourhood.

Analysis:

The establishment and enhancement of neighourhoods
around a central and identifiable theme can improve
community pride and recognition. This in turn can improve
interest in the area from a real estate perspective and
potentially tourism. Neighbourhood enhancements are a
tool in the upcoming draft Complete Streets Manual this
fall.

The courthouse area makes a great pilot neighbourhood:

s fantastic historical neighborhood with a very
identifiable central theme, being the courthouse

» streetscapes are generally well balanced and
functional in their current form

» great private and public trees including numerous
heritage trees
an existing community street party

¢ the boundaries are reasonable to define as shown
to the right.

To brand a neighbourhood it is prudent to start with some
public engagement. If Council is interested in exploring this
concept further then staff will begin gathering information
immediately through the public and stakeholder groups
such as the Municipal Heritage Committee and will report
back with next steps.

In 2017, ESD plans to reconstruct Stanley Street from
Sunset to Wellington and Queen Street from Wellington to Centre.

Ideas that could be considered as part of those projects are:

1. Street sign style: An image of the courthouse could be
placed above each street name on antique posts as shown
to the right.

2. Creation of a promenade along the west side of Stanley
with lookouts would reconnect the area to the river valley
and provide an enhanced pedestrian walkway

3. The existing heritage walking tour could be updated and
converted into a walking tour app. The app would be a
neighbourhood, City wide, and also tourism interest. An
example of walking tour app is Victoria BC.

www victoria.ca/E N/main/community/about/heritage-walking-tours. himl
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If this neighbourhood enhancement is well supporied and appears to have value, it could be evaluated
for other areas of the City.

Financial Considerations:

There are no immediate impacts on the City budget. Environmental Services staff will conduct
community engagement in-house. Staff will also conduct design of Stanley Street and Queen Street in
house. If the neighbourhood is created then minor streetscape features may be requested and
approved through capital projects like new street poles and signs. If a walking tour app is created there
would be a minor cost for development.

Respectfully Submitted,

Justin Lawrence, P.kEng
Director of Environmental Services and City Engineer

Reviewed By:

Treasury Env. Services Planning City Clerk
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City of St. Thomas

For the Nine Months Ending September 30, 2016

2016 2016 2016 2015
ACTUAL BUDGET varuNCcE vaiance ANNUAL ACTUAL
DESCRIPTION YTD YTD $ % BUDGET YTD
MUNICIPAL HERITAGE COMMITTEE
REVENUE
National Trust for Canada funding 1,500 1,500
TOTAL REVENUE 1,500 1,500
EXPENSES
Reg Part-time Wages 4,324 3,375 949  28% 4,500 3,569
All Statutory Benefits 379 300 79 2% 400 300
Secretarial Support 750
Program Supplies 352
TOTAL EXPENSES 4,703 3,675 1028 26% 4,900 4,971
TOTAL MUNICIPAL HERITAGI 3,203 3,676 @ -13% 4,900 4,871





